AD-A1	55 556	A M 'IN BOU	ULTIME TELLIC	DIA K Sent'	NOWLED Comput F cogn	GE REF ERIZED ITIVE	RESENT TUTO	ATION (U) Ci Ce Pi	FOR A OLORAD BAGGET	N O UNIV T ET P	/ AT	1/:	1	
UNCLA	SSIFIED	22	APR 85	S ICS-	TR-142	N0001	4-84-6	-0122		F76 9	972 	NL		
					END Filmed									
`			.											



MICROCOPY RESOLUTION TEST CHART NATIONAL BUREAU OF STANDARDS-1963-A



C

 \square



A MULTIMEDIA KNOWLEDGE REPRESENTATION \mathcal{V} FOR AN "INTELLIGENT" COMPUTERIZED TUTOR

AD-A155 556

Patricia Baggett Psychology Department University of Colorado and Andrzej Ehrenfeucht Computer Science Department University of Colorado

Technical Report No. 142

Institute of Cognitive Science University of Colorado Boulder, Colorado 80309

April, 1985

This research was sponsored by the Personnel and Training Research Programs, Psychological Science Division, Office of Naval Research, under contract Nos. N00014-84-C-0122, NR 667-533 and N00014-85-K-0060, NR 702-001

06

7

85

LECTE UN 2 5 1985

В

026



Approved for public release; distribution unlimited. Reproduction in whole or in part is permitted for any purpose of the United States Government.

	REPORT DOCU	MENTATION	PAGE		
REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION Unclassified		16 RESTRICTIVE None	MARKINGS		
SECURITY CLASSIFICATION AUTHORITY		3 DISTRIBUTION	TAVALLABILITY O	F REPORT	riburton
DECLASSIFICATION / DOWNGRADING SCHEDU	JLE	Nst 1	Distribution Ur	limited	
PERFORMING ORGANIZATION REPORT NUMBE	R(S)	5. MONITORING	ORGANIZATION R	EPORT NUMBER(S)	
NAME OF PERFORMING ORGANIZATION	66 OFFICE SYMBOL	7a NAME OF M	ONITORING ORGA	NIZATION	
Department of Psychology	(If applicable)				
ADDRESS (City, State, and ZIP Code) University of Colorado	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	76 ADDRESS (Cit	ty, State, and ZIP	Code)	
Campus Box 345 Boulder, CO 80309					
NAME OF FUNDING / SPONSORING ORGANIZATION	8b OFFICE SYMBOL (If applicable)	9 PROCUREMEN	T INSTRUMENT ID	ENTIFICATION NUN	ABER
Office of Naval Research	L				;
Personnel Training & Research	n Programs	PROGRAM	PROJECT	see aiso 1	WORK LINIT
Office of Naval Research (Coc	le 442 PT)	ELEMENT NO.	NO NO0014- 85-K-0060	NO NR 702-001	ACCESSION NO
TITLE (Include Security Classification)		<u> </u>	<u></u>	<u> </u>	
Patricia Baggett and Andrzej TYPE OF REPORT 13b TIME OF Interim FROM 10 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTATION	Ehrenfeucht OVERED 984TO1985	14 DATE OF REPC 1985 April	DRT (Year, Month, 22	Day) 15 PAGE C	OUNT
This work also supported by C	DNR contract NOO	014-84-C-012	2 / NR 667-53	3 7	
COSATI CODES FIELD GROUP SUB-GROUP	18. SUBJECT TERMS (COnceptualiza	Continue on revers Mul imedia tion data s	e if necessary and a knowledge tructure for erforming pr	d identify by block representation computer im ocedures	number) on, plementat:
ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse if necessary	and identify by block i	number)	<u> </u>		
The intended end wooduct tutoring system for precedura This paper presents the data of nodes (mental, abstract, m (subconcept and pointer). Th tions of conceptualizations t We show how the representation making inferences, and design of the tutoring system. We m including how it can be derive our knowledge representation	of our current al tasks, and in structure that notoric or actio he graph example that people migh ons are used for ning instruction report previous yed from experim to others.	research pro particular, will be used n, visual, and s given in the t have for a choosing act s. We give applications entally obse	oject is an for repair . It is a g nd verbal) a he paper are simple obje tions, plann the plan for of this kno rved behavio	"intelligent of physical of graph with fi- and two types knowledge r- ect, a flashl ing strategi- computer im- powledge repre- por. And we co	" multimed objects. ve types of links epresenta- ight. es, plementat: sentation; ompare
DISTRIBUTION / AVAILABILITY OF ABSTRACT	RPT DTIC USERS	21 ABSTRACT SE	CURITY CLASSIFIC	ATION	
		225 TELEPHONE	(Include Area Code	1 220 OFFICE SYN	ABOL
A NAME OF RESPONSIBLE INDIVIDUAL					

i.

•

A Multimedia Knowledge Representation

for an "Intelligent" Computerized Tutor

Patricia Baggett Psychology Department University of Colorado

and

Andrzej Ehrenfeucht Computer Science Department University of Colorado

Table of Contents

- I. Introduction
 - A. Research overview
 - B. Purpose of this article
- II. Theoretical Background
 - A. The theoretical framework
 - B. Selecting a knowledge representation
 - 1. Matching the representation and behavior
 - 2. Relativity of the knowledge representation
 - 3. Efficiency of the representation
- III. Representing Knowledge in the Theoretical Framework
 - A. The representation
 - B. Use of concepts
 - 1. Actions and strategies
 - 2. Inferences
 - C. Instructions
 - D. An overview of the proposed programs
 - 1. The data base
 - 2. Special purpose procedures
 - 3. English parser
 - 4. Concept building procedure
 - 5. A driver
 - E. Comparison of the proposed knowledge representation with others
 - 1. Matching the representation and behavior
 - 2. Relativity
 - 3. Efficiency
 - 4. A comparison of our representation with KRL
 - 5. Our approach and frames and semantic networks
 - 6. Our approach contrasted with Paivio and linguistically based theories

7. The role of background, or world knowledge

IV. Final Remarks

Appendix 1. A Fictitious Adult's Conceptualization of a Flashlight

Appendix 2. A Fictitious Child's Conceptualization of a Flashlight

A Multimedia Knowledge Representation for an "Intelligent" Computerized Tutor

Abstract

The intended end product of our current research project is an "intelligent" multimedia tutoring system for procedural tasks, and in particular, for repair of physical objects. This paper presents the data structure that will be used. It is a graph with five types of nodes (mental, abstract, motoric or action, visual, and verbal) and two types of links (subconcept and pointer). The graph examples given in the paper are knowledge representations of conceptualizations that people might have for a simple object, a flashlight. We show how the representations are used for choosing actions, planning strategies, making inferences, and designing instructions. We give the plan for computer implementation of the tutoring system. We report previous applications of this knowledge representation, including how it can be derived from experimentally observed behavior. And we compare our knowledge representation to others.

	An const	•	Z
	2		V
		1 A 4	
	19 - A	. :	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	Зу	· · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	Avell	euni ny et 1017	0:00
÷ 4.)	i. Ge st g	tout () Specifie	il and a second
	A-1		



I. Introduction

A. Research Overview

Our current research is focused on how to design interactive multimedia instructions for procedural, and more specifically, repair tasks. A repair is defined as follows: Suppose we have an object which has both structure and function. By repair we mean a modification of the structure, when the object has stopped functioning or is functioning incorrectly, in order to make it function properly again.

The main goal is to find the theoretical and practical principles for developing an "intelligent" computerized system for repair, while also actually developing such a system.

The method of the research, which we have just begun, is to build an experimental implementation using the data structures and procedures that act on them which are presented here and which come from our theoretical framework (Baggett & Ehrenfeucht, 1982, 1985). The system will be used in the domain of repair tasks. The main questions are:

- 1. Is our theoretical representation of knowledge (see below) an adequate description of the knowledge a person must have to perform repair tasks?
- 2. Can our multimedia knowledge representation be efficiently implemented as a tutor for repair tasks?
- 3. What types of tutor/user interactions can be used to communicate successfully the tutor's knowledge to the user? Theoretically, how can new information most effectively be entered into an existing representation?
- 4. What is the role of modalities of information (moving video, still photos, color graphics, verbalization) with respect to the concepts people form, and with respect to their being able to execute these concepts, i.e., perform the repairs?
- 5. (Related to 4.) What conceptualization does a person form as a result of the task? How does information from the tutor influence the person's conceptualization?
- B. Purpose of this Article

The purpose of this paper is to present concrete examples of the multimedia knowledge representation which has not yet been implemented but which we plan to use as a data structure for the tutor. We take a relatively simple example, a flashlight. In III.A. below we show, in fairly complete detail, the knowledge representations for two different fictitious human conceptualizations of the flashlight, as viewed in our framework (Baggett & Ehrenfeucht, 1982). In III.B. we show how knowledge representations, as viewed in our framework, are formed and used for selecting actions, for strategies, and for making inferences. III.C. focuses on preparing individualized instructions for a repair task, and III.D. gives an overview of our plans to implement the ideas in an "intelligent" program which would be used as a teacher in a repair task.

A SALAR AND A S

A. The Theoretical Framework

The theoretical framework guiding this work, which has given rise to the explicit knowledge representation and processes acting on it presented below, concerns how people process information. It deals with concept formation and with encoding, retaining, and using information from multimedia stimuli. Within the framework a concept is represented as a graph with two kinds of associative links, and nodes corresponding to elements from different modalities, e.g., motoric (action), visual (pictorial), linguistic, and abstract. (Details are given in Baggett & Ehrenfeucht, 1982.) There is thus a single conceptual memory. (Many other researchers also assume a single conceptual memory, for example, Anderson & Bower, 1973; Carbonell & Collins, 1974; and Norman & Rumelhart, 1975.) The memory is connected to multiple processors. Processors can be thought of as processing visual input, auditory input, tactile input, and so on. Processors take input signals and put them into memory, forming concepts.

Concepts are not independent. If processor A builds a concept, then processor B can build another concept that is a part of it. This gives the hierarchical structure and the multimedia aspect: Visual, auditory, and motoric information, for example, can be part of the same concept. A theoretical approach similar to ours is that of Jackendorff (1983), who states that there is a single level of mental representation at which linguistic, sensory, and motor information are compatible.

We plan to analyze specific hypotheses arising in this new project within our framework, and, importantly, we expect that there will not be a situation in which we have to modify the framework (e.g., add a new link type) in order to do the analysis. The basic data structure does not seem to be too restrictive, and it appears that its efficiency is as good as any other proposed.

B. Selecting a Knowledge Representation

Work on knowledge representation in artificial intelligence has resulted in a variety of types of data structures for storing information in computer programs, and in procedures that manipulate the data structures in an "intelligent" way. We discuss here three criteria for evaluating a knowledge representation:

1. Can it be matched with the actual behavior of subjects? There are two sides here: (a) Can the representation be <u>derived from behavior</u>, and (b) Can it be used to predict behavior?

2. When the representation is used, does it contain the necessary and sufficient information for successfully performing the tasks it is designed to handle?

3. Is it efficient, i.e., sufficiently fast to be used on-line?

We briefly comment on the three criteria:

1

1. Matching the Representation and Behavior

(a) If the representation can be derived from behavior, it can be useful in designing individualized instructions, i.e., instructions that fit the way a particular person is conceptualizing a task. (We know from our own research, e.g., Baggett, 1983; Baggett & Ehrenfeucht, 1985, that such a conceptual match is important for performance. Lack of this ability in computerized instruction thus far is one shortcoming given by Sleeman and Brown, 1982. Its presence can be considered evidence that the program is indeed "intelligent".)

(b) The ability to use the representation to predict behavior gives the representation psychological validity.

We note that in a production system representation (e.g., Anderson, Kline, & Beasley, 1979; Davis, Buchanan, & Shortliffe, 1976; Davis & King, 1977; Hedrick, 1976; Lenat, 1982; Rychener, 1976; Shortliffe, 1976; Vere, 1977; Waterman, 1970), (a) is difficult and (b) is easy. In a semantic network representation (e.g., Anderson & Bower, 1973; Brachman, 1979; Carbonell, 1970; Carbonell & Collins, 1974; Hendrix, 1976; Norman & Rumelhart, 1975; Quillian, 1978; Stefik, 1980; Walker, 1976; Woods, 1975; Woods et al., 1976), (a) is easy and (b) is difficult.

2. Relativity of the Knowledge Representation

In evaluating what is a good knowledge representation, we keep in mind that there is no absolute or best or ideal one. (This fact was also discussed by Wilensky, 1984). Evaluation of the knowledge representation must be done relative to the task (i.e., the context or environment). There are two points here:

(a) The knowledge representation should not have extraneous elements, i.e., elements never used in a given group of tasks.

(b) The knowledge representation should be complete, i.e., within the group of tasks, all actions that can make a difference in the outcome must be accounted for (included).

3. Efficiency of the Representation

For a practically designed tutoring system, efficiency is an important issue. It can be divided into two components:

(a) Non-laboratory tasks, for which it is worthwhile to have a tutoring system, are fairly complex. So the size of the data base used for the knowledge representation can be a crucial element that determines the success or failure of the system.

(b) An interactive tutoring system requires real-time processing of data. Subjects should not have to wait long for its response (Anderson, 1984; Shneiderman, 1980). So the algorithms for data processing have to be fast.

In III. we propose a knowledge representation which seems to satisfy the three criteria above.

III. Representing Knowledge in the Theoretical Framework

A. The Representation

The 13 diagrams on pages A1 through A5 (Appendix 1) represent a fictitious (not experimentally derived) adult's conceptualization of a flashlight, as viewed in our framework. The seven diagrams on pages C1 through C3 (Appendix 2) represent a fictitious child's conceptualization, also viewed in our framework. Here is an explanation of the conventions used in the diagrams:

A -----> B means A has a pointer to B.

Concepts in circles are abstract.

Concepts in triangles are motoric (actions). They are denoted by capital letters.

Concepts in squares are visual. They are executable by the visual processor. We label them V:. The values for each V; are given in Figure 1.

Concepts in ovals are linguistic. They contain verbal labels. In the diagrams, some subconcepts do not have linguistic components. This corresponds to the fact that many people do not have ready-made names for many parts.

Verbal explanations to the right of each diagram are not part of the concepts. They are merely explanations for the reader.

The division of the adult's conceptualization into 13 diagrams and the child's into 7 is done solely for the purpose of readability. Each conceptualization could just as well be one diagram.

Now we shall discuss some properties of the diagrams in detail.

In diagram 2. structure (adult), V_2 represents the flashlight as the person sees it. (See Figure I.) A has pointers to both V_4 and V_5 . The pointers indicate that, if the person unscrews the cap, he or she expects to see a case with batteries (V_4) and a front part with protector and bulb (V_5). V_4 and V_5 are concepts executable by the visual system, so that the expectation can be verified. For example, if the actual flashlight whose cap was unscrewed did not contain batteries, execution of V_4 would fail to detect the batteries.

The pointer from A to V_2 indicates that if the person screws the cap V_5 onto the case with batteries V_4 , the person expects to see a complete flashlight.

This pattern repeats in many diagrams. For example, for the adult, each action, besides having a verbal subconcept, also has one or more visual subconcept(s) which can be treated as arguments for the action. The action also has a pointer to one or more visually recognizable concepts, which represent the objects seen as the result of the action.



page 6

Other pointers from an action point to abstract concepts. An example is in diagram 2. structure (adult). Here, a pointer goes from action A to C_3 , an electrical connection. This means that the action of screwing on the cap should cause the electrical connection between bulb and battery.

In diagram 3. functionality (adult), we see a pointer going from abstract concept 30 to L. This means the person expects the light to be off because the electric circuit is open. A pointer from abstract concept 29 to L indicates the light is one because the circuit is closed.

These examples show that the actual meaning of pointers (causal, expectations, etc.) depends on the types of concepts they are linking. In general, a meaning for the pointer will depend on the context in which it is used. In an example later in this paper, some pointers will indicate a temporal sequence of actions. Even in diagram 2. structure, pointers between A^- and V_5 could have a temporal interpretation: "First unscrew the cap, and then look at the case with batteries and the front part."

Similar ambiguities occur also in interpreting other parts of the diagrams. Concept A can be interpreted as a relation, i.e., "the front part is screwed on the case with batteries," as well as the action of screwing the front part on the case. Similarly, in $\frac{4. \text{ case with batteries}}{4. \text{ screwed}}$ batteries, B can be interpreted as, "batteries are in the case," as well as the action of putting the batteries in the case.

This distinction of relation versus action that causes the relation is not represented in the concept. The distinction occurs only when the concept is used. For example, in assembling or disassembling a flashlight, the concepts would actually be executed, and then clearly they are actions. If the concept is used as a blueprint for a verbal description of the structure of a flashlight, the concepts A, A^{-1} , etc., are verbally represented as relations between parts of the object.

Turning now to a general overview of the adult and child conceptualizations, we can summarize their knowledge as follows. The adult has a fairly detailed knowledge of the structure, a reasonable knowledge of the circuitry, and some understanding of the relationship between the structure and the circuitry. The child has a much more limited knowledge of the structure and no knowledge about the circuitry. The child also has a restricted verbal terminology. We can also notice (in <u>6. case</u> (child)) that the child does not view the contact bar as a part of the switch, but simply as a part of the body.

Another point needs to be mentioned here. Some things are left out of the conceptualizations presented. For example, there is no mention of the type of batteries or of electric current. Such omissions do not mean that the person does not have a knowledge of different types of batteries, etc. It only means that this knowledge is not incorporated as a subconcept of the concept of flashlight. (See also III.E.7 on world knowledge.)

B. Use of Concepts

1. Actions and Strategies

L

The concept of the flashlight as presented in the 13 diagrams allows our fictitious adult to perform many tasks, including repair tasks. For example, the sequence of actions $A^{-1}B^{-1}$ removes the batteries from the flashlight, and the sequence BA puts them back. This allows the person to change the batteries. Similarly, the person can change the bulb, or replace some other removable part of the flashlight.

The conceptualization presented above also allows the person to make some diagnoses of a malfunction. For example, if the light doesn't go on after the switch is pushed forward, the person knows something is wrong, because the expected result, as shown by a pointer from G to L (in <u>3. functionality</u>) is that the light <u>should be</u> on. A pointer from 29 to L (in the same diagram) gives the information that the closed circuit causes the light to be on. Closer examination of a circuit (in the last adult diagram, p. A5) shows what connections have to be made, and which elements are part of the connections.

In addition, for example, the pointer in 5. front part with protector and bulb from C to C₂ indicates that snapping the protector into the back of the reflector should form connection C₂. This information could lead to the following actions: $A^{-1}C^{-1}CA$. These actions would remove the front part, remove the protector with bulb, snap it in again, and screw on the front part again. Such a sequence of actions could possibly correct a poor contact between the bulb and the collar.

For comparison, our fictitious child has far more limited possibilities for actions. When there is a malfunction, the child is basically limited to pushing the switch on and off, and replacing the batteries.

This brings up again the question of background knowledge: Can a person perform some actions based on general background knowledge? We think (we do not have experimental evidence) that background knowledge is used in the following way: Some specific concepts from background knowledge can be incorporated into the concepts that are processed. This means the person changes his conceptualization of the flashlight. Then the person bases his actions on his modified conceptualization.

But in order to perform even very simple specific tasks, the person needs a strategy. Without one, the actions available would not be performed, or would be performed in a random, aimless order. We think that application of a strategy consists of two parts:

1.) Forming a plan of action, which basically consists of performing some mental operations; and

2.) Carrying out the plan.

Of course the two parts do not have to be done in the order given: A partial plan can be formed, and partial execution can be done.

In our framework, strategies are concepts, with an overall structure similar to the structure of an object such as the flashlight given above. The difference is that they will contain, among other elements, executable mental actions. Executable mental actions are treated in the same way as executable motoric actions, with one difference. Motoric actions, when executed, operate on physical objects. Mental ations, when executed, operate on concepts. In the examples below, we shall indicate executable mental actions by putting them in octagons: (M). We shall start with an example of a strategy for removing the bulb from the flashlight (Figure 2), and later generalize it to removing a part (subassembly) from an object.



M₁. concept of removing bulb from flashlight M₂. Form a plan.

M3. Carry out the plan.

M₄. Forget the plan.

P. Abstract plan (there is nothing in it)



Mental operations can be defined in terms of subconcepts, the subconcept relation, and pointers. Below, we give the definitions of M_2 , M_3 , and M_4 .

Definitions.



Definition of M₂. M₂ consists of 2 steps.

Step 1. Find a chain from V to V_{14} . Step 2. Make all elements of the chain subconcepts of P.

(On paper, it is shown as follows: Solid arrows are drawn from concept P to elements of the chain. See Figure 4.)



Figure 4

Definition of M₃. Execute all subconcepts and subsub....concepts of P in order, constrained as follows:

- (a) A subconcept must be executed before its concept; and
- (b) If one concept points to another, the second one must be executed after the first.

Definition of M_4 . Remove all subconcepts of P. (On paper, it is shown as follows: Erase all solid arrows that start in P.)

The concept M₁ is a strategy specific for the flashlight. This can be seen by observing that subconcepts V₂ and V₁₄ are common subsubconcepts for M₁ and for 1 (on p. A1), the adult's concept of flashlight.

- (1) execution of M₂ (mental, which would lead to modification of P (making P concrete). This gives the concept shown in Figure 4.
- (2) execution of M₃, which consists of the following sequence of physical actions:
- 1. $|V_2|$ Look at (locate) flashlight.
- 2. A Unscrew cap.

- 3. $|V_5|$ Look at front part.
- 4. $/C^{-1}$ Tilt and remove protector from back of reflector.
- 5. $\begin{bmatrix} V_{12} \end{bmatrix}$ Look at protector with bulb.
- 6. $\sqrt{D^{-1}}$ Take bulb out of protector.
- 7. V_{14} Look at bulb.
- (3) execution of M_4 (mental, which restores the original abstract P (shown in Figure 2 above.))

We observe three things:

- (1) The execution of M₂ makes the plan P concrete (in terms of Baggett & Ehrenfeucht, 1982).
- (2) In the execution of M_3 (carrying out the plan), motoric components direct the actions, and visual components direct the <u>attention</u> of the person performing the action.
- (3) Execution of M₄ is an example of an abstraction. It removes all subconcepts from P, returning it to its original abstract status.

We shall now show how strategies for removing other parts of the flashlight can be obtained from the strategy shown above, by transfer of learning.

In order to remove the <u>batteries</u> of the flashlight, one needs only to replace V_{14} by V_7 in Figure 2. The reader may check that the execution of such a modified concept would indeed remove the batteries. Similarly, replacing V_{14} by V_{20} would lead to removing the transparent disc.

We note that replacement of V_{14} by V_{22} would lead to a concept that would fail to execute, because there is no chain between V_2 and V_{22} in the concept of the flashlight. (The collar is nondetachable.) But of course the metal part, which the collar is a part of, is detachable and can be removed from the flashlight by replacing V_{14} by V_{18} .

We note also the role of M_4 . We assume for a moment that M_4 is not present. (This would be the situation depicted in Figure 2, but with no M_4 .) This strategy would lead to the correct removal of the bulb from the flashlight. But attempting the first editing operation, namely, replacing V_{14} by V_7 , would give a different result than before. Namely, execution of M_2 would simply add new subconcepts to P, which already has subconcepts assigned, from previous use. It would lead to a sequence of actions which would remove the batteries and remove the bulb. This is an example of carrying unnecessary actions from a previous task to a new task during transfer of learning. The error is rather typical, and in this case it is solely due to not performing the abstraction operation (that is, to not removing elements from the plan P from the previous task).

A general strategy for removing a part of an object is as follows. We take again our original Figure 2 and make V_2 and V_{14} undefined, as shown in Figure 5.



M1. concept of removing a part from an object M2. Form a plan.

M₃. Carry out the plan.

M4. Forget the plan

P. Abstract plan

u and w are undefined

That u and w are undefined means that the type of u and w is still a visually executable concept, but they are not executable. That is, they do not have a value that actually corresponds to a visual image.

Obtaining Figure 5 from Figure 2 is an example of generalization, as given in Baggett & Ehrenfeucht, 1982.

We observe that the concept in Figure 5 is not flashlight-specific. (It does not have any subconcepts in common with the flashlight concept.) It can be applied to the conceptualization of any object.

This concept of removing a part is still unsatisfactory in some respects. In particular, the strategy it represents does not tell what to do if execution fails, for example, if a plan is not found, or if execution of the plan fails, for one reason or another.

For an executable concept X we will denote by X' the failure of execution. (This convention can be seen in <u>3.</u> functionality (adult), where L' denotes failure to detect the light.) When there are pointers going out from an executable concept, we will make a distinction about which pointers have to be followed when the execution is a success versus when the execution is a failure. We graphically represent this as follows:

> (X = _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ next concept, if X is successful next concept, if X is unsuccessful

(We are not introducing an new type of pointer. We are simply indicating which pointer has to be followed, depending on the success or failure in the execution of concept X.) We note that this is the simplest (and most important) example of automatic decision making, as viewed in our framework.

In the example in Figure 6, we have added new linguistic subconcepts to our concept of removing parts. (Linguistic concepts <u>are executable</u> in our framework.) So now, application of the strategy in Figure 6 to any object would lead to one of three outcomes:



Figure 6

- (1) removing a part, or
- (2) verbal output, "it cannot be done," for the case where a plan cannot be formed; or
- (3) verbal output, "I cannot do it," for the case where the plan was successfully formed, but execution of the plan failed, that is, one of the motoric or visual components of the concrete concept P failed to execute.

2. Inferences

9

Our framework does not include any system of formal rules of logic. There are two reasons for this. First, we doubt the psychological validity of logical rules, as formulated in logical systems (people don't seem to think according to the rules of logic). Second, we don't see the need for such a set of rules in our framework.

Basic inferences are directly represented by pointers in our knowledge representation. There is one difference between our approach and logical inferences: In our representation, a pointer from G (push switch forward) to L (light is on), shown in <u>3. functionality</u> (adult), does not indicate that whenever the person pushes the switch forward, the light will be one. It indicates only that after pushing the switch forward, the person <u>should expect</u> the light to be on, and should try to confirm the expectation in this case by looking for the light.

Forming a chain of reasoning is not obtained by application of any rules of logic, but by the search for a chain of concepts, as in the example above. The definition of chain given above is just an example. Different definitions of chains would correspond to different methods of reasoning.

Another example of inference is given in Figure 6, when the person says, "It cannot be done." In this case, the inference is very simple. "It cannot be done" expresses the fact that the plan for action cannot be formed, and therefore action is impossible. This shows, among other things, that all

adatatan berezen itu katatan bistatan bistatan bistatan bulatan bistatan bistatan bistatan bistatan bistatan b

inferences are not universal (in our framework). Rather, they are situationdependent. The conclusion, "It cannot be done," would be reached by our fictitious child, when the child is asked to remove the bulb from the flashlight. But it would not be reached by our adult.

C. Instructions

Let us assume that the adult above wants to teach the child how to fix a malfunctioning flashlight, or to do some other task related to the flashlight. (For convenience we henceforth refer to the adult as A and the child as B.) We consider that there are two essential elements in this process:

(1) A needs to find out what B knows. This means A should construct a concept that is as close as possible to the concept B has. Ideally, A will have, besides his own concept of the flashlight, also the concept of the flashlight that B has.

(2) A has to instruct B. The method of instruction within our framework will be just a strategy, requiring planning and actions. A can use different strategies, depending on the situation, but all will have one thing in common: The objective of the instruction is to make B modify his concept in some specific way. (In our framework, this means that B has learned.)

There are many possibilities for A to achieve (1) mentioned above. One is to give B some task to do involving the flashlight and see how B performs.

In our example, suppose A gives B a flashlight with a burned out bulb and says, "Can you fix it for me?" Here are some hypothetical reactions of B, based on B's conceptualization: B pushes the switch forward and backward a few times with no result. He then says, "The batteries are bad. Do you have any good batteries?" After being given new batteries, B replaces the old batteries with the new ones and pushes the switch several more times, again with no results. He says, "I cannot fix it. It is broken."

We notice this simple interaction gives a pretty fair summary of B's conceptualization, both in terms of the actions that B can perform, and his knowledge about how the flashlight works.

But A's interpretation of B's behavior depends on A's conceptualization of a flashlight. In order to obtain B's conceptualization, A needs: (A) his own conceptualization and (2) an observation of B's behavior. This brings up a new mechanism not mentioned in the above example. The mechanism is building new concepts (in this case, the conceptualization of B), based on the concepts that A already has and on input stimuli, an observation of the behavior of B. Treatment of this problem will be discussed in part III.D.4 of this addendum.

Regarding (2) above, the method of teaching is treated as any other strategy: it involves planning and execution of the plan.

We discuss here a small but important technical point: How, in our representation of knowledge, will actions performed by <u>different</u> people be represented?

Suppose John changed the batteries. This information would be represented as in Figure 7.

しんくんじん いんしん ひんかんたいしん

Liniciti

12242224



- John changed batteries, or Batteries were changed by John.
- 2. the person John
- 3. batteries
- X. action of changing

Figure 7

This representation differs from the representation used in semantic networks, where John and the action would be directly connected by a labelled pointer, indicating that John is the actor of the action. it also differs from the propositional approach, in which John would be treated as an argument of the action in the proposition.

Our approach, on the other hand, is the one used in standard linguistic processing, where simple sentences are divided into noun phrase and verb phrase:



NP corresponds to John, and VP corresponds to an action, together with its arguments.

Thus, our person A would represent the fact that B replaced the batteries as in Figure 7 (with B substituted for John).

D. An Overview of the Proposed Programs

The (planned) program will consist of:

- (1) a data base
- (2) special purpose procedures
 - (a) concept processing procedures
 - (b) output procedures
- (3) an English parser
- (4) a concept building procedure
- (5) a driver

Each of these will be briefly discussed.

LEAST AND A CONTRACT OF A C

(1) The data base

The data base will contain knowledge represented as concepts, as shown above. It will contain a concept of the object, with the amount of detail corresponding to the amount of detail used in the description of person A above. It will also contain repair concepts that would correspond to the concept of removing a part of the object, as shown above.

We have estimated that a detailed representation of a concept for repairing the flashlight, one that would cover a malfunction in any part of the electric circuit or in a mechanical part, or in a combination, is approximately of the same size as the description of the flashlight given for the adult. (We use here the number of subconcepts as a measure of the size.)

The data base will also contain a teaching strategy. Its size will depend on the strategy used. Also, other concepts will be built by the program and added to the data base during interaction of the program with the subject.

The concepts which will be put in the data base (conceptualizations of the objects, repair strategies, etc.) will be experimentally derived and tested (and not fictitious, namely, invented by the experimenter, as were the concept of the flashlight given above).

(2) Special purpose procedures

(a) concept processing procedures

The program will contain basic procedures corresponding to basic mental operations such as M_2 , M_3 , and M_4 above. (A special procedure for M_1 is not needed, because execution of M_1 consists of execution of M_2 , M_3 , and M_4 .) Among the basic procedures, there will be ones for concept comparison, which have not been illustrated in the examples above. (All special purpose procedures will be data-driven. That is, the order in which they are evoked will be determined by concepts in the data base.)

(b) output procedures

The program will also contain procedures that control visual and verbal displays on the screen. These will also be data-driven, in the following way: Each motorically executable concept (as in the examples above) will correspond to having one the screen a segment of videotape showing performance of the action. Visual concepts will correspond to still pictures. Linguistic concepts will provide the text. Thus, the action of the program in executing concept M_1 (in figure 4), stored in the data base, will be as follows:

(1) Execution of M_2 : Search through data base, constructing a chain, and connect the chain to P.

- (2) Execution of M_3 : Show on the screen the sequence
- (i) still picture of flashlight
- (ii) moving video of unscrewing cap
- (iii) still picture of front part

page 16

- (iv) moving video of tilting and removing protector from back of reflector
- (v) still picture of protector with bulb
- (vi) moving video of taking bulb out of protector
- (vii) still picture of bulb

We note that this part of the program is the most task-specific. Clearly, the visual display will depend on the object to be repaired.

(3) English parser

The English parser will take the subject's input and construct a very simple knowledge representation of it (in the form of a concept), as is shown, for example, in Figure 7.

At the present time some students of A. Ehrenfeucht in the Computer Science Department are testing a rather sophisticated English parser, written in LISP, that possibly can be used for this purpose.

(4) Concept building procedure

This procedure is the most complex part of the whole program. It will take as its input the sequence of interactions between a subject and the program, and the concept of the object from the data base, and return to the data base a new concept, "how, at a particular point in time, the subject conceptualizes the object," Similarly, when taking from the data base the concept of "how to repair the object", it would return the concept, "how the subject thinks the object should be repaired."

To be a little more specific, let us assume (still using the flashlight example) that the following sequence has been shown on the screen:

still picture of flashlight moving video of unscrewing cap moving video of removing batteries moving video of putting batteries back in moving video of screwing cap back on

The subject's response, typed on the terminal, is, "I cannot unscrew it." From the point of view of internal processing, the special purpose output procedures $A^{-1}B^{-1}BA$ were evoked. The concept, call it 101, shown in Figure 8, would be created by the parser.

101. Subject cannot unscrew the cap.

(A⁻¹)' action of unscrewing the cap was unsuccessful



Figure 8

<u> Percencel (Estisted Constructure Provision) (Estisted Constructure Constructure Constructure Constructure Con</u>

للشينينين

The sequence A^{-1} , B^{-1} , B, A, 101 is the actual input for the concept building procedure. After this interaction, the concept of how the subject conceptualizes the flashlight would have A^{-1} as a <u>nonexecutable</u> subconcept.

The algorithm used in the concept building program will be a modification of the cluster analysis algorithm described in Perry (1983).

(5) A driver

A driver will synchronize the action of other procedures and keep track of concepts in the data base which are processed at a given time.

E. Comparison of the Proposed Knowledge Representation with Others

The knowledge representation we proposed seems to satisfy the criteria in II.B., 1, 2, and 3, above. Further, each of the three elements has been partially tested in practice. Some of the details (e.g., for matching behavior in a repair task with the representation) were presented in Baggett (1984). We give here a brief summary.

1.a. We can construct a subject's hypothetical conceptualization from the subject's performance (Baggett, 1983, 1984; Baggett & Ehrenfeucht, 1985. Baggett & Perrig, 1985).

1.b. We have been able to manipulate subjects' assembly performance by changing the representation of an object presented in an instructional videotape. (These were the "typical" vs. "minority" conceptualization results presented in Baggett & Ehrenfeucht, 1985). This means that our representational approach is psychologically valid and predictive.

2. Regarding relativity of the representation, when we match performance of a subject to the representation, we know what is never used and what is needed to make a complete representation. Further, we know how to test for extraneous material and completeness (Baggett, 1984).

3. Concerning the efficiency of the representation, we know about the size of the data base from objects containing nearly 100 pieces and over 100 physical connections. We also know about the algorithms which will operate on the data base.

First, in our assembly tasks we have worked with conceptualizations (representations) from hundreds of subjects. The data bases constructed were fairly small. Preliminary results from our repair tasks show that the data bases will be of similar size. Second, the algorithms we have used (Perry, 1983) have been fast enough for the tasks we have analyzed thus far. They have not been tested, however, in real-time use, that is, for processing that must be done while the subject works at the terminal.

4. A Comparison of Our Representation with KRL

Henry Halff (personal communication, 1983) asked whether KRL, a knowledge representation language (Bobrow & Winograd, 1977), has similarities with our representation. We very briefly discuss the similarities and also the differences.

a. In KRL knowledge is organized around conceptual entities. This is similar in our approach in which conceptual entities are primitives. However, KRL stresses descriptions associated with the entities, which we do not have.

b. Partial knowledge is represented in both approaches. We have different decompositions (conceptualizations); KRL has different descriptors. KRL represents different viewpoints; we have different representations for different purposes.

c. Both approaches are object-oriented. But our approach treats reasoning as an object, the same as other concepts. For us, a strategy, or the logic used, etc., are objects just as any other concepts are.

d. KRL clusters its information according to its use by processors. We do not. For us, a concept contains a mixture of elements, to be used by various processors.

e. KRL is a language. We are not trying to develop a language for our knowledge representation. We can use any number of existing languages.

The most important difference between KRL and our approach is that KRL works with text objects and descriptions, while in our data base visual elements are an essential part. Some objects in our data base do not even have a verbal description, except for a simple label for identification. For example, in our sequencing of the shots of a videotape (Baggett, 1984), there are no linguistic descriptions of what the sequences show, and such descriptions are also not needed.

5. Our Approach and Frames and Semantic Networks

Conceptually, our approach is closer to frames (Minsky, 1975; Bobrow & Winograd, 1977; Goldstein & Roberts, 1977; Novak, 1977; Charniak, 1978) than to any other class of representation.

Mathematically, it is closer to semantic networks, but our nodes and links mean very different things (see III. above) than they do for semantic networks.

One difference with semantic networks is that our procedures (e.g., strategies, etc.) are objects of the same status as any other data; they are concepts that are executable. When procedures are used, they are executed (mentally or physically).

6. Our Approach Contrasted with Paivio and Linguistically Based Theories

The main difference between our knowledge representation and that of Paivio (1971) and others is that in our representation each concept contains a mixture of elements of different types: abstract, motoric, visual, and verbal. (As mentioned in II.A., Jackendorff (1983) hypothesizes a level of representation at which linguistic, sensory, and motor information are compatible. He does not specify the structure or processes in detail, however.) Paivio's approach specifically postulates a distinction between verbal and imaginal processing (dual code). He treats both processes as parallel and as operating on different objects.

Some other approaches (for example, Kintsch & van Dijk (1978) and some versions of semantic networks) concentrate almost exclusively on processing linguistic elements, and put everything else in the category of "world knowledge."

7. The Role of Background, or World Knowledge

Our approach differs from others on the role of background or world knowledge in problem solving, that is, in doing a specific task. In our framework (as was briefly mentioned in III.A. above) the role of background seems to be very unimportant. Namely, either elements needed to solve the task are already incorporated into the concept involved in solving the task (just as some knowledge of the circuitry is incorporated into our adult's conceptualization of a flashlight), in which case the concepts used are sufficient by themselves to solve the problem (or perform the task); or necessary elements are not incorporated, in which case an attempt to perform the task would fail until the concepts are modified and extended.

IV. Final Remarks

In the introduction to their 1982 book <u>Intelligent Tutoring Systems (ITS)</u>, Sleeman and Brown state that the designers of intelligent tutoring systems, such as Brown, Burton, and dekleer (1981), Burton and Brown (1981), Clancey (1981), Genesereth (1981), Goldstein (1981), Kimball (1981), Miller (1981), Sleeman and Hendley (1981), and Smith, Graves, Blaine, and Marinov (1975), are dissatisfied with their system's overall performance. They continue, "The following are some of the acknowledged shortcomings:

(1) The instructional material produced in response to a student's query or mistake is often at the wrong level of detail, as the system assumes too much or too little student knowledge.

(2) The system assumes a particular conceptualization of the domain, thereby coercing a student's performance into its own conceptual framework. None of these systems can discover, and work within, the student's own (idiosyncratic) conceptualization to diagnose his "mind bugs" within that framework.

(3) The tutoring and critiquing strategies used by these systems are excessively ad hoc reflecting <u>unprincipled</u> intuitions about how to control their behavior. Discovering consistent principles would be facilitated by constructing better theories of learning and mislearning--a task requiring detailed psychological theories of knowledge representation and belief revision.

(4) User interaction is still too restrictive, limiting the student's expressiveness and thereby limiting the ability of the tutor's diagnostic mechanisms." (p. 3)

Our approach contains methods for potentially reducing, and perhaps eliminating, these shortcomings. Very briefly, we consider each of the 4 points above and how our system will treat it. 1. Information at the wrong level of detail. (ITS)

Our system (program) will discover what a subject's conceptualization is, namely, what the subject knows. Using a concept comparison procedure, it will compare that conceptualization to what the conceptualization should be. Therefore it can be very much on target in providing the information the subject needs to know to properly modify his concept. (It can be far more accurate than device model instruction (Kieras and Bovair, 1983) as well; device model instruction provides the same information for everybody.) The system can also test if the information provided is incorporated into the subject's conceptualization.

2. The system coerces a student into its own conceptual framework. (ITS)

Our approach can potentially make a large contribution here. Our system (program) will derive an individual subject's own conceptualization, and communicate with the subject using his own conceptualization.

3. Strategies are based on unprincipled intuitions. Better theories of learning need to be constructed. (ITS)

We have (in our theoretical paper, parts I and II) the beginnings of a detailed theory of learning. This research will be an opportunity to give it a major test.

4. User interaction limits a student's expressiveness, thereby limiting the tutor's diagnostic ability. (ITS)

First we consider subject-to-program communication. In our past work we have found that we can construct a subject's conceptualization of the structure of an object he is building, from an abstract graph and order of request for pieces. Such information can be obtained without any verbal input from the subject. This approach will be included in the design of the concept building procedure in our program. It will rely very little on the linguistic content of a subject's response, but mainly on the order of responses and possibly the time between responses. Therefore, construction of the subject's "conceptualization," which is needed for a diagnostic of the subject's problem, will not be severely restricted by limitations of the parser.

Second, we consider program-to-subject communication. In our present work we have found that a properly organized visual presentation plays a major role in instructions for how to build an object. The accompanying linguistic information clearly plays a far smaller role. The planned program is heavily biased toward presenting pictorial output. (Of course, the actual ratio of verbal to nonverbal material will be determined experimentally.)

A significant difference between the program presented here and some other "successful" programs (for example, MYCIN (Shortliffe, 1974, 1976) and GUIDON (Clancey, 1981) is as follows. In MYCIN and GUIDON, for example, there is a clear division between the expert part and the teaching part. Here, we do not have that distinction at all. All elements (student modeling, factual knowledge, inferences and teaching method) are treated uniformly.

Ţ

We hope that the theoretical ideas given here, and their practical implementation, may contribute to reducing or eliminating the main shortcomings of current programs that have been acknowledged by authors of intelligent tutoring systems.

Researchers working in cognitive architectures and their relationship to behavior (e.g., Anderson, 1984; Bobrow & Winograd, 1977; Langley, 1984) have observed that for an intelligent tutoring system, choosing a good representation for a set of tasks is crucial. A key point that we emphasize is that our knowledge representation seems to be right for the set of tasks that we plan to study. For example, we have had success in partially testing it. The representation is simple but powerful and seems to contain the right components. We discussed above how it can be matched with subjects' behavior, that it is complete and does not contain extraneous elements, and it seems to be efficient. Further, its multimedia aspect seems to be (other than the work by Munro and his colleagues on the General Maintenance Training Simulator) unique.

Anderson (1984) has urged that computerized tutors be used by many researchers as a paradigm for studying and testing theories of learning and skill acquisition. We hope to contribute to this effort, and we expect that through the research proposed here, our theoretical framework will develop into a full testable theory.

Footnote

This research was supported by Office of Naval Research contracts #N00014-78-C-0433, #N00014-84-C-0112, and #N00014-85-K-0060. Some of this work was reported at the ONR Contractors' Meeting on Instructional Technology for Advanced Training Systems in Atlanta, January 1985. We thank Debbie Aguiar for painstakingly typing the many diagrams, as well as the entire manuscript. This article is Technical Report No. 142 of the Institute of Cognitive Science.

References

- Anderson, J. (1984). New perspectives on intelligent computer assisted instruction; Cognitive principles in the design of computer tutors. Talks at conference of the Cognitive Science Society, Boulder, CO.
- Anderson, J. & Bower, G. (1973). Human associative memory. Washington, D.C.: Winston.
- Anderson, J., Kline, P., & Beasley, C. (1979). A general learning theory and its application to schema abstraction. In G. Bower (Ed.), <u>The</u> <u>psychology of learning and motivation</u>, (Vol. 13). New York: Academic Press, 277-318.
- Baggett, P. (1984). Designing effective instructions. Talk at ONR Contractors' Meeting, Tucson, AZ.
- Baggett, P. (1983). Four principles for designing instructions. <u>IEEE</u> Transactions on Professional Communication, 99-106.
- Baggett, P. & Ehrenfeucht, A. (1982). A framework for forming, modifying, and using multimedia concepts in memory, Part I. Mathematical formulation. Technical Report 118-ONR, University of Colorado. (Part II. Psychological interpretation. In progress.)
- Baggett, P. & Ehrenfeucht, A. (1985). Conceptualizing in assembly tasks. Technical Report 139-ONR, Institute of Cognitive Science, University of Colorado.
- Baggett, P. & Perrig, P. (1985) Conceptualizing and building in an assembly task: What actually develops from child to adult. Manuscript submitted for publication.
- Bobrow, D. & Winograd, T. (1977). An overview of KRL, a knowledge representation language. Cognitive Science, 1, 3-46.
- Brachman, R. (1979). What's in a concept: Structural foundations for semantic networks. In N. Findler (Ed.), Associative networks: The representation and use of knowledge by computers. New York: Academic Press.
- Brown, J.S., Burton, R.R., & deKleer, J. (1982). Pedagogical, natural language and knowledge engineering techniques in SOPHIE I, II, and III. Chapter 11 in Sleeman, D. and Brown, J.S. <u>Intelligent Tutoring Systems</u>. New York: Academic Press.
- Burton, R.R. & Brown, J.S. (1981). An investigation of computer coaching for informal learning activities. Chapter 4 in Sleeman and Brown.
- Carbonell, J. (1970). AI in CAI: An artificial intelligence approach to computer-assisted instruction. <u>IEEE Transactions on Man-Machine Systems</u>. MMS-11: 190-202.
- Carbonell, J. & Collins, A. (1974). Natural semantics in AI. IJCAI, 3, 344-351.

- Charniak, E. (1978). With spoon in hand this must be the Eating frame. TINLAP-2, 187-193.
- Clancey, W. (1981). Tutoring rules for providing a case method dialogue. Chapter 10 in Sleeman and Brown.
- Davis, R., Buchanan, B., & Shortliffe, E. (1977). Production rules as a representation for a knowledge-based consultation system. <u>Artificial</u> <u>Intelligence</u>, 8, 15-45.
- Davis, R. & King, J. (1977). An overview of production systems. In E. Elcock & D. Michie (Eds.), <u>Machine Intelligence</u>, 8, Chicester, England: Horwood, 300-332.
- Genesereth, M.R. (1981). The role of plans in intelligent tutoring systems. Chapter 7 in Sleeman and Brown.
- Goldstein, I.P. (1981). The genetic graph: A representation for the evolution of procedural knowledge. Chapter 3 in Sleeman and Brown.
- Goldstein, I. & Roberts, R. (1977). NUDGE, a knowledge-based scheduling program. <u>ICJAI</u>, <u>5</u>, 257-263.
- Halff, H. (1983). Personal communication.
- Hedrick, C. (1976). Learning production systems from examples. <u>Artificial</u> Intelligence, 7, 21-49.
- Hendrix, G. (1977). Expanding the utility of semantic networks through partitioning. Artificial Intelligence, 7, 50-69.

Jackendorff, R. (1983). Semantics and cognition. Cambridge: MIT Press.

- Kieras, D.E. & Bovair, S. (1983). The role of a mental model in learning to operate a device. Technical Report No. 13, University of Arizona.
- Kimball, R.A. (1981). A self-adapting, self-improving tutor for symbolic integration. Chapter 12 in Sleeman and Brown.
- Kintsch, W. & van Dijk, T.A. (1978). Toward a theory of text comprehension and production. Psychological Review, 85, 363-394.
- Langley, P. (1984). Cognitive architectures and principles of behavior. Talk at Cognitive Science Society Conference.
- Lenat, D. (1982). AM: An approach to discovery in mathematics. In Davis, R. & Lenat, D., Knowledge-based systems in artificial intelligence. New York: McGraw-Hill, 1982.
- Miller, M.L. (1981). A structured planning and debugging environment for elementary programming. Chapter 6 in Sleeman and Brown.

Minsky, M. (1975). A framework for representing knowledge. In P. Winston (Ed.), The psychology of computer vision. New York: McGraw-Hill, 211-277.

Munro, A. (1984). Personal communication.

- Norman, D. & Rumelhart, D. (1975). <u>Explorations in cognition</u>. San Francisco: Freeman.
- Novak, G. (1977). Representation of knowledge in a program for solving physics problems. IJCAI, 5, 286-291.
- Paivio, A. (1971). Imagery and Verbal Processes. New York: Holt, Rinehart & Winston.
- Perry, R.M. (1983). Computer techniques for cluster analysis. ONR Technical Report, Department of Computer Science, University of Colorado.
- Quillian, M. (1968). Semantic memory. In M. Minsky (Ed.), <u>Semantic</u> information processing. Cambridge: MIT Press.
- Rychener, M. (1976). Production systems as a programming language for artificial intelligence applications. Computer Science Department, Carnegie-Mellon University.

Shneiderman, B. (1980). Software psychology. Boston: Little, Brown.

- Shortliffe, E.H. (1974). MYCIN: A rule-based computer program for advising physicians regarding antimicrobial therapy selection. Ph.D. dissertation in Medical Information Sciences, Stanford University. Also, (1976). <u>Computer-Based Medical Consultations</u>: MYCIN. New York: American Elsevier.
- Sleeman, D. & Brown, J.S. (1982). Intelligent Tutoring Systems. New York: Academic Press.
- Sleeman, D. & Hendley, R.J. (1981). ACE: A system which analyzes complex explanations. Chapter 5 in Sleeman and Brown.
- Smith, R.L., Graves, H., Blaine, L.H., & Marinov, V.G. (1975). Computerassisted axiomatic mathematics: Informal rigor. In O. Lecarne and R. Lewis (Eds.) Computer Education. Amsterdam: North Holland.
- Stefik, M. (1980). Planning with constraints. Report No. 784, Computer Science Department, Stanford University.
- Vere, S. (1977). Relational production systems. Artificial Intelligence, 8, 47-68.
- Walker, D. (1976). Speech understanding research. New York: North-Holland.
- Waterman, D. (1970). Generalization learning techniques for automating the learning of heuristics. Artificial Intelligence, 1, 121-170.

Wilensky, R. (1984). KODIAK: A knowledge representation language. Talk at Cognitive Science Society Conference.

Woods, W. (1975). What's in a link: Foundations for semantic networks. In Bobrow, D. & Collins, A. (Eds.), <u>Representation and understanding:</u> Studies in cognitive science. New York: Academic Press, 35-82.

7

+

Woods, W., et al. (1976). Speech understanding systems: Final report (Report No. 3438). Cambridge, MA: Bolt, Beranek, and Newman, Inc.







- 8. one battery
- 9. another battery
- 10 and 11. each battery is charged
- V = V because the batteries are visually identical.

Lage AL

7





5. front part with protector and bulb

- 12. protector with bulb
- 13. cap
 - C. snap protector into back of reflector
 - C⁻¹. tilt and remove protector with bulb from back of reflector.
 - C₂. electrical connection; see <u>29.</u> and <u>30.</u> below.

12. protector with bulb

- 14. bulb
- 15. protector
- 16. not burned out
- V₁₆. continuous filament can be seen in bulb
- D. put bulb into protector
- D⁻¹. take bulb out of protector

TREESE TREESE REPEARING AND THE PARAMETERS IN THE PARAMETERS IN THE PARAMETERS IN THE PARAMETERS IN THE PARAMET



ł

.

- <u>13. cap</u>
- 17. plastic part
- 18. metal part
- E. snap metal part into plastic part
- E^{-1} . remove metal part



- 19. plastic ring
- 20. transparent disc
- F. put disc into ring
- F⁻¹. remove disc from ring





- 18. metal part
- 21. reflector
- 22. collar (nondetachable)

page A4



27

v₂₇

26

(SWITCH

V₂₆



- 23. plastic tube
- 24. switch with contact bar
- 25. coil spring (nondetachable)
- V₂₅. is seen only after removing batteries

24. switch with contact bar

- 26. switch
- 27. contact bar (nondetachable)
- V. is seen only after removing 27 batteries



- 3. functionality
- 14. bulb
- 28. electric circuit
- 29. closed circuit
- 30. open circuit
 31. lighted bulb
- 1. lighted bulb L. light is on
 - . light is on . light is off
- G. push switch forward
 - push switch backward
 - electrical connection; see <u>29.</u> and <u>30.</u> below
 - lack of electrical connection; see 29. and 30. below.



.....

29.	closed circuit
30.	open circuit
25.	spring
27.	bar
22.	collar
14.	bulb
8.	battery
9.	battery
с,.	bar is connected
Ŧ	to collar
с¦.	bar is not connected
Ŧ	to collar
С.	collar is (electrically)
2	connected to bulb
С.	bulb is connected to
5	battery
С,.	battery is connected to
-	battery
С ₅ .	battery is connected to
2	spring
с ₆ .	spring is connected to
Ũ	bar
c2	is made by C.
C_	is made by A.
3	
C_4 a	nd U are made by B.
C ₆ s	hould be permanent



)

page C2



- 7. batteries
- 8. one battery
- 9. another battery
- 10 and 11. each battery is
- good V₉ = V₈ because the batteries are visually identical



- 5. front part with protector and bulb
- 14. bulb



U. Case	6. ca	se
---------	-------	----

- 23. plastic tube
- 26. switch
- 27. bar
- 25. coil spring

page C3



- 3. functionality
- light is on light is off L.
- L'.
- push switch forward G.
- c^{-1} . push switch backward
 - 7. batteries (good)

	Fridøy. April 5, 1985 7∘54 em		Friday. April 5. 1935 7:54 mm
Baggett & Ehrenfeucht, "Co	inceptualizing in Assembly Tasks"	Beggett & Ehrenfeucht, "Co	nceptualizing in Assembly Tasks"
		Dr. John S. Brown	an interfo
FFFSOTTEL ARALYSIS ULVISION Astropha	Dr. Alan Daudeley Medical Research Council	XEROX Palo Alto Research	brown University
SCIAT, The Fentagon	Applied Psychology Unit	Center 2223 former Sand	Computer Science Department
Woshington, DC 20530	15 Chaucer Road Cambridge CR2 255	Palo Alto, CA 94304	Providence, RI 029.2
Air Force Human Resources Lab	ENCLAND	Dr. Brune Buchanan	Dr. Michalene Chi Lanatar B. C. C. C.
AFTER /VPD Decise and TV volume		Department of Computer Science	University of Plitchurch
	University of Colorado	Stanford University	25.9 (nucre Street
Air Force Cffinm	Department of Psychology	Stanford, CA 34305	Pittsburgh, PA 15213
of statting broaded	Boulder, CO 80309	Dr. Patricia A. Butler	Dr. Susan Chipman
Bolling Air Force Russ	Dr. Eva L. Baker. Director	NJE Mail Step 1806	Code 442PT
Weshington, DC CC32	UCLA Center for the	1200 19th St., NW	Office of Naval Research
	Study of Evaluation	Washington, DC 20208	800 N. Quincy St.
Pr. Robert Ablard Post Hist	145 Moore Hall	Dr Richard Castone	Arlington, VA 22217-5000
Portons Caboratory	Los Angeles. CA 90024	Navy Rescarch Laboratory	Dr. Willing Clances
RECEITERS AND		Code 7510	Computer Solene Constrant
Exposite the second	Dr. John Rlack	Washington, DC 20375	Stanford University
	Ynle University	De later Carteria	Stanford, CA 943cg
ur. Ed Alken X.J. Dersonal 250 fastar	Box 11A, Yale Station New House of Action	ur, Jaime Carooneil Carnegie Mellon University	Di rector
		Department of Psychology	Manpover Support and
	Code N711	Pittsburgh, PA 15213	Restiness Frage.
Cr. William E Alley	Attm: Arthur S. Blaiwes		Center for Navel Andlysts
	Naval Training Equipment Center	Coast Cuard G. PTE	Alexandria Urauripiri Utreet Alexandria Vi Julii
SECOND TO SECOND	Orlando, FL 32813	2100 Second St., S.W.	
Cr. Sari A Alluisi	Dr. Nick Bond	Washington, DC 20593	Scientific Advisor
C. AFHTL (AFSC)	Office of Naval Research	Dr. Pat Carpenter	to the Dife (WPT) Center for Nevel And velo
Sizer VI "Bar Maca	LIBISON UTILCE, FAR EAST Add Sam Francisco PA offor	Carnegie-Mellon University	2000 North Peauregard Street
Dr. John R. Anderson	Coros va togetalle i line all	Department of Paychology	Alexandria, VA 22311
Estartment of Psychology	Dr. Lyle Bourne	FISCI MY . MALESOUR	
Carnetie Wellon University	Pepartment of Psychology	Dr. Robert Carroll	Chief of Maval Education
EISCI PA (CALICULATION)	University of Colcrado	NAVOP 115	Liaison ffire
Terthors Pirecton	BULLOFT UN BUSUY	Washington, DC 20370	Air Force Numan Resource Laboratory
Arry Research Institute for the	Dr. Gordon H. Bower	1 - - -	Operations Training Division
E havioral and Social Sciences	Department of Psychology	Ur. Fred Chang	Williams AFB, AZ Pyż?4
5001 Eleaboran Avenue	Stanford University	San Diego ra 02153	
Alreadele, VA 72723	Stanford, CA 94306		Research, Development
Spirit Linguison, for Projects	Dr. Richard Braby	Dr. Davida Charney	Test, and Furley ten
(bal) (bal)	TAFG	Department of Psychology	Noval Educatics and
CT (20) The Feet goa	NA VTRAFOUTPOEN	Carnegie Mellon University Schantar Pack	Tratuture Command (N.5)
	0~lando, FL 32813	ecureiry rark Pittshuroh på 15212	NAS Pensarola, FL, 32508

Code N-075R Navtaafolifpcen P-12ndo, FL 32813 Dr. Robert Breaux

........

Π

0

Fridey. April 5. 1985 7:54 mm

Baggett & Ehrenfeucht. "Conceptualizing in Assembly Tasks"

Cffice of the Chief of Naval "Ferations Pesarch Pereichtent * Studies Frinch Nauge Ange Ange Washington, 55 20350 Dr. Allan M. Collins Polt Freark & Nomon, Inc. 53 Moutron Streed Constrige, MA CO138 Pr. Stantey Collyer 2014an of Maval Technology 201 N. Quincy Street Arlington, VA 20017

Dr. Lymm A. Cooper Learning and Croter Columnsity of Pittsburgh 2013 There Direct Pilishursh, PR 19213

fr. Lev Tronbach 15 Laturum Riat Atherton, CA 34205 Dr. Mary Cross Department of Education and: Literary Initiative, Room 4145 212 Maryuand Avroue, SM Kismington, DS 23202

CTB/W2Graw-Hill Library 2000 Garden Poad Munturey, CA 93900 CDF Mike Curran SECto of Navel Research To Na Cuincy St.

Mryim Dallmun ssueliylar Lumiy Ise, co 60230 Er. Turles E. Pavis Presonnei and Triining Research Offican of Kuval Research Sishe Tupper Prington, VA 22211-5000 Ariington, VA 22211-5000

Defense Technical Information Center Camuron Station, Bidg 5 Alexandria, VA 22314 Alexandria, VA 22314 (12 Copies) Dr. Thomas M. Duffy Department of English Carnegle-Meilon University Schmiley Park Fittsburgh, PA 15213

Edward E. Eddowes CNATRA N301 Naval Air Station Corpus Christi, TX 78419 Dr. John Ellis Navy P∻rsonn≗l R&D Center San Di⊷go, CA 92252 Dr. V⊴ffrey Elman University of Californie D≏partment of Linguistics La Jolla, CA 92093 Dr. Richard Elster Deputy Assistant Secretary of the Navy (Manpower) Washington, DC 20359

Dr. Susan Enbretson University of Kansas Psychology Pepartment Lawrence, KS h6045 ERIC Facility Acquisitions Eq32 Rughy Avenue Butherda, MD 20014

Dr. K. Anders Ericsson University of Colorado Department of Psychology Boulder, CO 80309 Edward Esty Department of Education, OERI 1200 19th St., NW Washington, DC 20208

Dr. Beatrice J. Farr J. S. Army Research Institute 5001 Eisenhower Avenue

Dr. Marshall J. Farr 2520 North Vernon Street Arlington, VA 22207

Alexandria, VA 22333

Mr. Wallace Feurzeig Educational Technology Bolt Beranek & Newman 10 Moulton St. Cambridge, MA 02238

Dr. Craig I. Fields ARPA 1400 Wilson Blvd.

Arlington. VA 22209 Dr. Gerhard Fischer Llebiggasse 5/3

A 1010 Vienna Austria Dr. Linda Flower

or, time rows Carnegie-Melion University Department of English Pittsburgh, PA 15213 Dr. Ken Forbus Repartment of Computer Science University ox Illinois Champaign. IL 61820

Dr. Jude Franklin Code 7510 Navy Research Laboratory Washington, DC 20375 Dr. John R. Frederiksen Bolt Beranek & Newman 50 Meulton Street Cambridge, MA 02138 Dr. Michael Genesereth Stanford University Department of Computer Science Stanford, CA 94305

.

Dr. Dedre Gentner University of Illinois Department of Paychology 603 E. Deniel SL. Champaign. IL 51820 Dr. Robert Glaser Learning Research & Devrloprent Center University of Pittsburgh 3939 O'Hana Street Fittsburgh, PK 15260

Fittoburgh, PK 15260 Dr. Marvin D. Glock 217 Store Hall

Cornell University Ithaca, NY 14553 Dr. Joseph Goguen SRI International

SRI International 3/3 Ravenswood Avenue Menlo Park, CA 94025

Dr. Sherrie Gott AFHRL/MaDJ Brooks AFB, TX 78235 Dr. James G. Greeno University of California Berkeley. CA 94720

Dr. Henry M. Halff Halff Resources. Inc. 4918 33rd Road. North Arlington. VA 22207 William E. Harturg Product Manager for PEAM Army Research Institute for the Behavioral and Social Sciences 5001 Elsenhower Ave

Alexandria. VA 22333

Prof. John R. Hayes Carnegiv-Mellon University Department of Pay hology Schenivy Park 15213 Pittsburgh, PA 15213 Dr. Rarbara Hayes-Roth Department of Computer Science Stanford University Stanford, CA 95305 he and the state

olv Taskan

Friday. April 5, 1985 8:36 am

Baggett & Ehrenfeucht. "Conceptualizing in assembly Tasks"

Friday, April 5, 1985 8:36 am

Baggett & Ehrenfeucht, "Conceptualizing in assembly Tasks"

Dr. Frederick Hayes-Roth 525 Carversity Ave. Palo Alte, rA 90501 oknew) edge

Graduate Group in Science and Netheratics Elucation University of Colffornia rie Ertent of Education CT. Uran I. Heller

Cr. JI- Hollan 13 4,00

Forkeley CA 91.720

Havy Foresmel R & D Center Sim Diego, CA 92152

"Tiversity of Michigan 2 13 East Ereinearing Pri Arber, VI 1.9100 Cr. John Holland

Antitude Costitutes for Research 1.05 Tromis Jeffordom St., NM astington, PC 2107 Mellers Nellard

Scivitsity of Muchigan Human Ferformanna Center 1190 Dru Batth Philyonk St Parkard Road In Arbur, MI Dr. Earl Hunt Prointint of Psycholngy Construct minimization 5.2.11m, 24A 23105

Mary Fersoncel Rid Center San Dingo, CA 92152 Pr. 21 Butchins

Investor " service Consulting And All states of Anone is an and a set Pr. Zarbary Jacot con ••

Carnegie Mellon University Encartanet of Psychology Scheeley Park Schesburgh, PA 15213 Cr. Marcel Just

Little Little Little Little Little Little

Dr. Milton S. Katz Army Research Institute 5001 Elsenhower Avenue Alexandria, VA 22333

Department of Psychology University of Dregon Steven W. Keele Eugene, OR 97403

Development Center (D104) Systems Branch Quantico, VA 22'34 Maj. John Keene MCDEC ADP 3

Chief of Naval Education Dr. Norman J. Kerr Naval Air Station and Training Code 0CA2

Pensacola. FL 32508

College of Engineering 1225 E. Engineering Building Ann Arbor, MI 48109 Technical Communication Dr. David Kieras University of Michigan

Training Analysis & Evaluation Group Dr. Peter Kincaid Dept. of the Navy Orlando, FL 32813

Department of Psychology University of Colorado Dr. Walter Kintsch Boulder, CO 803n2

Training Pressreh Division Alexandria, VA 22314 ting 5 Washington Dr. Mazle Knerr Fregram Manager **PERCE**

Grorgia Institute of Technology School of Information & Dr. Janet L. Kolodner Computer Selence Atlanta, GA 7932

1236 William James Hall 33 Kirkland St. Dr. Stephen Kosslym Harvard University

University of California Department, of Information and Computer Science Irvine, CA 92717 Dr. Pat Langley

University of North Carolina The L. L. Thurstone Lab. Davie Hall 013A Chapel Hill, NC 27514

Carnegie-Mellon University Department of Psychology

University of Pittsburgh Pittsburgh, PA 15240 Dr. Alan M. Lesgold Learning R&D Center

Human Cognition Dr. Jim Levin D003A Dr. Michael Levine

University of Illinois Champaign, IL 61801

Sclence University of Colorado Department of Computer R0309 Campus Pox 430 Boulder, CO

Research Crgunization 1100 South Washington Alexandria, VA 22314

Library of Congress Washington, DC 20540

U. S. Department of Education Washington, DC 20208 Dr. Arthur Melmed 24 Brown

8 36 m Friday. April 5, 1985

Baggett & Ehrenfeucht, "Conceptualizing in assembly Tasks"

Cambridge, MA 02138

333 Ravenswood Avenue Menlo Park, CA 94325

مر

Dr. Charlotte Linde SRI International

Dr. William L. Maloy (O2)

Higley &2 65236

Dr. Don Lyon P. 0. 8,1x 44

Dr. Marcy Lansman

Dr. Jill Larkin

Pittsburgh, PA 15213

Department of Psychology University of California Santa Barbara, CA 93105

Santa Parbara, CA 92105

Dr. Richard E. Mayer

Dr. Sandra P. Marshall Department of Psychology University of California

Pensacola. FL 325,08

Naval Air Station

CNET

University of California Laboratory for Comparative La Jolla, CA 92093

Department of Computer Science New York, NY 10027

Columbia University

Navy Personnel R&D Center

Dr. Joe McLachlan

San Diego. CA 92:52

favy Personnel MåD Center

Dr. James McMichael

San Diego, CA 92152

Dr. Parbara Means

Human Prscurces

Carnesie-Mellon University

Pittsburgh, PA 15213 Dr. Kathleen McKeoun

Department of Psychology

Dr. Jay McClellans

Department of Educational Psychology 210 Education Bldg.

Dr. Clayton Levis

Science and Technology Division

Landard a statement (see a second through a second by the second s

Friday. April 5, 1995 8:37 🚥

Baggett & Ehrenfeucht. "Conceptualizing in assembly Tasks"

Mathematics Group Office of Naval Research Code 411MA Director. Manpower and Personnel NPRDC (Code 06) Laboratory

San Diego, CA 92152 Human Factors Director

& Organizational Systems Lab. San Diego. CA 92152 NPRDC (Code 07)

Fleet Support Office NPRDC (Code 301) San Diego, CA 92152

Code P201L Navy Personnel R&D Center San Diego, CA 92152 Library

Technical Director Navy Personnel R&D Center San Diego, CA 92152

Naval Research Laboratory Commanding Officer Code 2627

Washington, DC 20390

Dr. Harry F. O'Neil, Jr. Training Research Lab Army Research Institute 5001 Elsenhower Avenue Alexandria, VA 22333

Learning R & D Center University of Pittsburgh 3939 O'Hara Street Pittsburgh, PA 1521 Dr. Stellan Chisson

Director Technology Programs Office of Naval Research Crde 200

Director Research Programs Office of Naval Research 890 North Guincy Street

800 North Quincy Street Arlington. VA 22217-5000 Office of Neval Russarch Code #33

879 N. Culney Street Arlington, VA 22217-5000

Psychological Sciences Division Code 142

Office of Naval Hesearch 800 N. Quincy St. Arlington, VA 22217 5600

Office of Naval Pesearch Code 41:2EP

Mrlington, VA 22217-5000

Group Psychology Program

Office of Naval Pesearch 900 N. Cuincy St. Code 4425P

Office of Naval Research Ariingten, VA 22217 5090

Code 442PT

Bro N. Quincy Street Arlington, VA 22217-5090 (6 Copres)

Special Assistant for Waring Corps Matters Code 100M

Office of Naval Pesearch 800 N. Quincy St. Arlington. VA 22217 5000

1070 East Green Street Pasadena, CA 91101 **ONR Branch Office** Psychologist

Baggett & Ehrenfeucht. "Conceptualizing in assembly Tasks"

Friday. April 5, 1985 8:36 em

Dr. Al Meyrowitz Office of Navol Research STO N. Culney Arlington, VA 27217-5000 Cide Ling

Office of Scientific and Engineering Cr. Andrew R. Mollar

Mational Science Foundation **Personnel and Education** Arshington, DC 2753

Dr Hillign Montague NF3EC Code 13 San Dirgo, CA 92152 Headquarters, Monthe Corps Wartington, DC 20380 UCTION AFOU

Retente Rue h. CA 90277 Dr. Ailen Munro Ewhavistal Tochnology Laboratorios 1946 Eleno Aye.

Warel Military Personnel Command controtes Jepartment Director

Head, Hay Courstions Branch Wathington, DC 23370

Versi will-ary Personnel Command Withington, DC 20370 3.1.1

trister for Evaluation.

Have Wiltery Personnel Command Pariyats, and MIS . . .

Her Ington, DC 20370

трост 1982. бог безожгод, Ехрог¦. Vavit Tribuital Triutang Cremand Part 1 A A. S. B. Program

..Coden 116) MLC Memoria (75) Millington, IV (2050

Sam Dirego, CA 92152 WFRDC (Code 05)

Director. Training Laboratory

Program Manager for Manpower Personnel. and Training

Arlington. VA 22217-5000

Washington, DC 20370 NAVOP 01B6

NAVOP 140F lead

Washington. DC 20370

UNVOP 014D Head

5A578. The Pentagon Washington, DC 20350

uni Training Project Officer Naval Medical Command (Code PSC) Leadership Management Education

HQ A:C/TTA Randolph AFB, TX 78148 Mr. Rill Neale

San Diego, CA 92138 **Technical Director** Pox 85122 ċ.

Dr. Pichard E. Nisbett Iniversity of Michigan Room 5261

Ann Arbor, MI 48109

University of California Dr. [mnald A. Norman

NAVMAT 0722

Assistant for Planning MANTRAPERS

derkforce Information Section

Munpower, Personnel, Training and Reserve Team

Washington, DC 20,72

Wavy Health Research Center

Institute for Social Research

Institute for Cognitive Science La Jolla, CA 92053

Arlington, VA 22217-5000 800 North Quincy Street

Arlington, VA 22217-5000

Army Research Institute AfTN: PERI-BR (Dr. J. Crasanu) 5001 Eisenhower Avenue Alexandria, VA 22333 Commanding Officer

BOA N. Guincy Street

Baggett & Ehrenfeucht. "Conceptualizing in assembly Tasks"

E 8-37

Fridey. April 5, 1985

Baggett & Ehrenfeucht. "Conceptualizing in mssembly Tasks"

American Institutes for Research 1055 Thomas Jefferson St., NW Dr. Ernst Z. Rothkopf Washington, DC 20007 Dr. Andrew M. Rose

Bell Laboratories Murray Hill, NJ 07974

School of Industrial & Systems Dr. William B. Rouse Engincering

Information Processing Dr. David Rumelhart Center for Human

Univ. of California La Jolla. CA 72093

6271 Variel Avenue Woodland Hills, CA 91364

Army Research Institute for the Behavioral and Social Sciences 5001 Elsenhower Avenue Alexandria, VA 22333 Dr. Robert Sasmor

P.O. Box 2158 New Haven, CT 06520 Dr. Roger Schank **Yale University**

University of California Department of Education Dr. Alan Schoenfeld Berkeley. CA 94720

Dr. Judah L. Schwartz 200-120

Cambridge, MA 02139

Mail Stop 1806 Washington, DC 20208

Georgia Institute of Technology

Atlanta. GA 30332

Dr. Michael J. Soret Perceptronics, Inc

Department of Computer Science

1200 19th Street N.W. Dr. Judy Segal

Carnegic-Mellon University University of California Berkeley. CA 94720 Department of Psychology Department of Neurology Dr. James A. Reggla University of Maryland South Greene Street Cearning R & D Center Schenley Park Pittsburgh, PA 15213 Baltimore, MD 21201 Dr. Lauren Resnick Physics Department Dr. Fred Relf ່ຂ

3039 O'Hara Street Pittsburgh, PA 1521

Dr. Gil Ricard Cod+ N711 Orlando, FL 32813 Dr. Mary S Riley

Program in Cognitive Science Center for Human Information University of California La Jolla, CA 92093 Proressing

Code 712 NAVTRAEQUIPCEN William Rizzo

Dr. Steven E. Poltrock MCC 9430 Research Blvd. Echelon Pldg 01 Austin, TX 78759 Vassachusetts Institute of Technology Cambridge, MA 02139

Prof. Seymour Papert

201-202

Dr. Joseph Pactka ATTN: PERI-1C

Irmy Research Institute 5001 Eisenhower Ave. Alexandria, VA 22333

Dr. Lynne Peder

School of Medicine and Hospital

University of Pittsburgh

Orlando, FL 32813

NAVTRAFCULPCEN

Dr. Nancy Penningian Thiversity of Chilago Gr fasts School of Pusinens

12909 71 "Checky

1... E. 57th St.

:

Chiversity of California.

Sarta Barbara

I'. Jares W. Pellegrino

Drunsview. Ontario

404340

Pox 2000

Dr. Douglas Pearse

Cepartment of Psychology Santa Barabara, CA 93106 Military Assistant for Training and Frid Thild, The Pentagon Periornal Tachnology K risten. 20 20301

C Frank C. Perno, MSC, USN (Ph.D) (267 N) 121.

Fersacola, FL 32509

lante University of Technology "apt. of Elication C-, Tierri Plong 31 40 EVCOREDE

SCAULSHILM SEL P.C. P. 1 217

Digertrant of Csychology interesting of Intorado را تې وله د د ول کې Dr. Martha Polson SUS AND DUDEN

Dr. Fater Polson University of Colorado Espartant of Psychology Pouller. Cn Pron

berge meeterst instants hertreet metrices metric in the second metrics. Presses interest metrics is the second

Friday, April 5, 1985 8:37 mm

Dr. Robert J. Seidel US Army Presench Institute 5901 Eisenhower Ave. Alexandrin, VA 22333

Dr. Ramsuy W. Selden

National Institute of Education 1200 19th St., NM Washington, DS 20209

OXR Code 442PT 890 N. Quincy Street Arlington. VA 22217-5000 Dr. Micheel G. Shafto

Dr. Sylvia A. S. Shafto National Institute of Education 1200 13th Street Mail Stop 1836

Computer Science Department Washington, DC 2020A Dr. Ted Shortliffe

Stanford University Stanford, CA 94305

Carnegie Mellon University Department of Psychology Dr. Pobrit S. Singler Pittsburgh, PA 15213 Schenley Park

Dr. Zita M Simutis, Chief Instructional Technology Systems Area

5001 Elsenhower Avenue Alexandria, VA 22533 Dr. H. Wallace Sinaiko Manpower Research

and Advisory Services Smithsonian Institution 801 North Pitt Street Alexandria, VA 22314 Dr. Edward E. Sm1+h

Bolt Beranek & Sowman, Inc. 50 Moulton Street Cambridge, MA 02138

Friday, Breit 5, tors Brggett & Brrenfeucht, "Conceptualizing in assessing Tasas" And be also used they لمكالم فيكرفه أحكامها Ę 8:37 Friday. April 5. 1985 Raggett & Ehrenfeucht. "Conceptualizing in assembly Tasks"

.

ţ

ŧ . .

Kaval Training Equipment Center Criardo, FL 32913 Dr. Alfred F. Smode Serior Scientist Code 78

Pepartnent of Computer Science New Haven, CT 05520 Elliot Soloway fale University P. J. Pox 2158

Dr. Richard Screnson X.vy Pursonnel P&D Center Sun Diego. CA 92152

Psychology Department Dr. Kathryn T. Spoehr Providence, AI 02012 frown University

Corregie-Vellon University purment of Psychology Pittsburgh, FA 15213 Jones J. Stastowski Evenanch Arsoniate

Dr. Frederick Steinheiser ishirston. TC 20505 5. 1 Cdv FID

2-. Rebert Sternberg Department of Psychology Box 11A. Yale Station Lew Hoven, CT 05520 Sale (niversity

Sitt Foranek & Kouman, Inc. Cambridge. MA 92238 Dr. Albert Stevens 3 Moulton St.

raining Research Division Contor Staff Scientist lin S. Washington Alreadria, V4 22314 Dr. Paul J. Sticha 2

Tary Personal P&P Center Con Direc. CA 92152 Pr. Hmas Sticht

3420 East Shea Blvd. Dr. David Stone KAJ Software, Inc. Phoenix, AZ 85028 Sulte 161

Dr. John Tangney NFOSR/NL

Bolling AFB, DC 20332 Martin M. Taylor . ح

Downsview, Ontario Box 2000 CANADA DC IEM

Central Engineering Labs 1185 Coleman Avenue. Box 580 Dr. Perry W. Thorndyke Santa Clara, CA 95052 FMC Corporation

Irlington. VA 22209 **Major Jack Thorpe** UND WILSON BIVD. DARFA

Dr. Martin A. Tolcott Psychological Sciences Division Office of Naval Research 800 N. Quincy St. Arlington. VA 22217-5000

Dr. Douglas Tewne Behavioral Technology Labs 1845 S. Elena Ave. Redondo Reach. CA 90277

3333 Covote Hill Road Palo Alto. CA 94304 Dr. Kurt Van Lehn Xarcz PARC

Pult Berarek & Newman, Inc. Cambridge, MA 02138 **50 Moulton Street** Dr. Seth Warren

Department of Administrative Sciences Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, CA 93940 Poger Weissinger Baylon

Central Engineering Labs 1185 Coleman Ave.. Box 580 Santa Clara. CA 95052 Dr. Keith T. Wescourt FMC Corporation

Dr. Douglas Wetzel 5 50de

Navy Personnel R&D Center San Diego, CA 92152

124 University Avenue Palo Alto. CA 94301 Dr. Mike Williams IntelliGenetics

Dr. Robert A. Wisher U.S. Army Institute for the Behavioral and Social Sciences 5001 Eisenhower Avenue

Navy Personnel R & D Center San Diego, CA 92152 Dr. Martin F. Wiskoff Alexandria, VA 22333

Dr. Frank Withrow U. S. Office of Education 400 Maryland Ave. 54 Washington, DC 20202

Navy Personnel R&D Center San Diego, CA 92152 Mr. John H. Wolfe

Dr. Wallace Mulfeck, III Mavy Personnel R&D Center San Diego. CA 92152

Lowry AFB. CO 80230 Dr. Joe Tasatuke AFHRL/LRT

USMC Headquarters. Marine Corps 4ajor Frank Yohannan. fashington, DC 20380 (Code MP1-20)

System Development Foundation 181 Lytton Avenue Palo Alto, CA 94301 Mr. Carl York

forth Chicago, IL 60054 ATTN: MEPCT-P 2500 Green Bay Poad Cadr. Joe Toung HQ, MEPCIM

Dr. Joseph L. Young Memory & Cognitive Processes

Mational Science Foundation Washington, DC 20553

Dr. Steven Zornetzer Office of Maval Pesearch 800 M. Quincy St. Arlington, VA 22217-5000 Code 447

END

FILMED

8-85

DTIC